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U.8. DISTRICT COURT
FASTERN DiEVRICT OF TEXAS
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 5 2006
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS Juk 2
LUFKIN DIVISION DAV G IALAND, CLERK
LEPUT wiletd L4
Blackboard Inc., ) ‘ o
) CaseNo._9.06 (/1S A
Plaintiff, )
)
V. ) Jury Trial Demanded
Desire2leam Inc., ;
Defendant, ; ]'udge Clark

PLAINTIFF BLACKBOARD INC.’S COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT

THE PARTIES

1. Plaintiff Blackboard Inc. (“Blackboard™) is a corporation organized under the
laws of the State of Delaware, having its principal place of business at 1899 L Street NW,
Washington, District of Columbia 20036.

2. Upon information and belief, defendant Desire2Learn Inc. (“D2L”) is and has
been a corporation organized under the laws of Canada, having its principal place of business at
72 Victoria Street South, Suite 401, Kitchener-Waterloo, Ontario, Canada N2G 4Y9.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This is an action for patent infringement arising under the patent laws of the
United States, 35 U.S.C. §§ 1 et seg. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28
U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1338(a).

4, This Court has personal jurisdiction over D2L because D2L conducts business
and has committed acts of patent infringement and/or has contributed to or induced acts of patent

mfringement by others in the State of Texas (as well as elsewhere in the United States).
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5. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391 and 1400.

BLACKBOARD’S PATENT IN SUIT

6. On January 17, 2006, the United States Patent and Trademark Office duly and
legally issued U.S. Patent No. 6,988,138 B1 entitled “Internet-Based Education Support System
and Methods™ (the “’ 138 patent™). A true and correct copy of the *138 patent is attached hereto
as Exhibit A.

7. Blackboard is the owner of all right, title, and interest in and to the 138 patent by
assignment, with full and exclusive right to bring suit to enforce the *138 patent, including the

right to recover for past infringement.

COUNT ONE

D21.°s INFRINGEMENT OF THE *138 PATENT

8. Blackboard realleges and incorporates herein the allegations of paragraphs 1
through 7 as if fully set forth herein.

9. The *138 patent is valid and enforceable.

10.  Upon information and belief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, D2L uses, offers to
sell, and sells within the United States, and/or imports into the United States, products and
services that infringe the >138 patent, including, but not limited to all D2L products based on the
D2L. learning system or platform, such as the D2L eLearning Technology Suite, which includes
the D2L Learning Environment, Learning Repository and LiveRoom, and all services supporting
these D2L products, such as hosting services, training services, help desk support services,
implementation and customization professional services, and content services.

11. Upon information and belief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271, D2L also

contributes to and/or induces infringement of the *138 patent.
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12.  Upon information and belief, D2L has willfully infringed the *138 patent.

13. Upon information and belief, D2L’s acts of infringement of the *138 patent will
continue after service of this complaint unless enjoined by the Court.

14.  Asaresult of D2L’s infringement, Blackboard has suffered and will suffer
damages.

15.  Blackboard is entitled to recover from D2L the damages sustained by Blackboard
as a result of D2L’s wrongful acts in an amount subject to proof at trial.

16.  Unless D2L is enjoined by this Court from continuing its infringement of the *138
patent, Blackboard will suffer additional irreparable harm and impairment of the value of its
patent rights. Thus, Blackboard is entitled to an injunction against further infringement.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Blackboard prays for judgment and relief as follows:

(a) That D2L has infringed the *138 patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271;

(b) That D2L’s infringement of the *138 patent has been willful;

(c) That D2L be ordered to pay damages adequate to compensate Blackboard
for D2L.’s infringement of the 138 patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284, including an accounting;

(d) That D2L be ordered to pay treble damages pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284;

(e) That D2L be ordered to pay Blackboard’s attorney fees pursuant to 35
U.S.C.§ 285;

() That D2L, its officers, agents, and employees, and those persons acting in
active concert or in participation with D2L, and its successors and assigns, be enjoined from
further infringement of the’ 138 patent pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 283;

(2) That D2L be ordered to pay prejudgment interest;
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(h)  That D2L be ordered to pay all of Blackboard’s costs associated with this

action; and

(1) That Blackboard be granted such other and additional relief as the Court

deems just and proper.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Blackboard demands a trial by jury on all issues so triable.

Dated: July 26, 2006

J. Thad Hegtjéd

Texas Bar Mo, 09346800

LAW OFFICES OF J. THAD HEARTFIELD
2195 Dowlen Road

Beaumeont, Texas 77706

Phone: 409.866.3318

Fax: 409.866.5789

E-mail: thad@jth-law.com

Clayton E. Dark, Ir.

Texas Bar No. 05384500

LAW OFFICE OF CLAYTON E. DARK, JR.
P. O. Box 2207

Lufkin, Texas 75902-2207

Phone: 936.637.1733

Fax: 936.637.2897

E-mail: cekrad@yahoo.com

Fay E. Morisseau (Texas Bar No. 14460750)
McDERMOTT WILL & EMERY LLP
18191 Von Karman Avenue, Suite 500
Irvine, CA 92612-7108

Phone: 949.851.0633

Fax: 949.851.9348

E-mail: fmorisseau@mwe.com

Attomeys for plaintiff Blackboard Inc.

ORC 392600-3.072575.0081
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S AD 120 (Rev. 3/04)

TO: Mail Stop 8 REPORT ON THE
) Director of the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office FILING OR DETERMINATION OF AN
P.O. Box 1450 ACTION REGARDING A PATENT OR
Alexandria, VA 22313-1450 TRADEMARK
In Compliance with 35 U.S.C. § 290 and/or 15 U.S.C. § 1116 you are hereby advised that a court action has been
filed in the U.S. District Court on the following [ patents or L] Trademarks:
DOCKET NO. DATE FILED U.S. DISTRICT COURT
9:06cv155 7/26/06 Eastern District of Texasg; Lufkin Divisimn
PLAINTIFF DEFENDANT
Blackboard Inc DesirelLearn Inc
PATENT OR DATE OF PATENT
TRADEMARK NO. OR TRADEMARK HOLDER OF PATENT OR TRADEMARK

5
In the above—entitled case, the following patent(s)/ trademark(s) have been included:
DATE INCLUDED INCLUDED BY :
- ] Amendment - [] Answer [ Cross Bill  : [ Other Pleading
PATENT OR DATE OF PATENT
TRADEMARK NO. OR TRADEMARK HOLDER OF PATENT OR TRADEMARK
1
2
3
4
5
In the above—entitled case, the following decision has been rendered or judgement issued:
DECISION/JUDGEMENT
CLERK (BY) DEPUTY CLERK . DATE _
David J Maland 7/26/06

Copy 1—Upon initiation of action, mail this copy to Director

Copy 3—Upon termination of action, mail this copy to Director

Copy 2—Upon filing document adding patent(s}, mail this copy to Director  Copy 4—Case file copy
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